
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

AUGUST 11, 2022 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Roll Call. 

 Pledge of Allegiance  

Approval of Minutes: July 14, 2022 

Final Plats 

Consent Agenda 
 
(1) P-1120-37 Shannan Easter Is Requesting Final Plat Approval Extension For Easter 

Resurvey of Erwin Circle. The Purpose for This Request Is to Combine 
Acreage With Platted Lot. The Property Is Owned By Shannan Easter and 
Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2.   

 
(2) FP-22-2 John Robert Adams III Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Adam’s 

Resurvey Of Lots15 And NW ½ Of Lot 14, Block 2 Of Third Addition 
To Shades Cahaba Estates. The Purpose for This Request Is To Subdivide 
One Lot Into Forty Six Lots, Common Areas, Streets, and Alleys. The 
Property Is Owned By Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills PR-1.   

 
Rezoning, Annexation Non-Compatible       

(3) P-0622-12 Townes Development Group, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning (Annexation) 
For 2245 & 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd. from JC R-T, JC R-2, & JC R-4 to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 For Townhome Development And Annexation. 
REHEARING 

 

Rezoning, Annexations Compatible      

(4) RZ-22-3 John White & Patricia Lucas Are Requesting Compatible Rezoning For 
3516 & 2534 Ridgedale Dr.  from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills 
R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation.  



 
(5) RZ-22-4 Jason Womack Is Requesting Compatible Rezoning For 2632 Rillwood 

Rd.  from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose 
Of Annexation.  

 
(6) RZ-22-5 Daniel & Faye Cambron Are Requesting Compatible Rezoning For 2644 

Yorkmont Dr.  from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The 
Purpose Of Annexation.  

 
Amendment To Planned Unit Development      

(7) P-0822-19 Christopher, LLC Et Al Are Requesting A Planned Unit Development 
Amendment For Patchwork Farms To Increase The Number Of 
Approved Condo Units From 30 To 37.  

 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 1 

 

 
           

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

JULY 14, 2022 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date 
at 6:00 PM, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, in coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and 
pursuant to orders from the Jefferson County Health Department Official requiring social 
distancing along with limits of attendees, this meeting was held with a portion of the 
Commission digitally attending the meeting via remote computer locations utilizing a 
Zoom.com application. Staff and general public/audience members also were invited to 
attend via Zoom.com following publication pursuant to Alabama law. Chairman Barnes 
called the meeting to order and the City Planner called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Erica Barnes, Acting Chairman 
      Rick Honeycutt 
      Ryan Farrell 
      David Maluff 
      Jonathan Romeo 

Rusty Weaver 
      Mike Vercher* 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Lyle Larson 
      Hasting Sykes 

*Appeared via Zoom 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer  

          
   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Ms. Barnes stated that the minutes of the meeting June 9, 2022 are presented for 
approval. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve minutes was made by Mr. Weaver and second was by 

Mr. Romeo.  Voice vote as follows: 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 2 

 
 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Maloof– yes   
Mr. Vercher– yes    Mr. Weaver– yes     
Ms. Barnes– yes  
Motion carried. 
 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
(1) P-0622-16 Overton Investments, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 

Resurvey Of Part Of Vestavia Terrace, A Condominium. The 
Purpose for This Request Is To Finalize A Townhome 
Development. The Property Is Owned By Overton Investments, 
LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-9.   

 
Mr. Garrison explained the request and stated the item is ministerial. 
 
Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Commission concerning this request, Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened 
the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve item 1 was made by Mr. Weaver and second was by 

Mr. Romeo.  Voice vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Maloof– yes   
Mr. Vercher– yes    Mr. Weaver– yes     
Ms. Barnes– yes  
Motion carried. 
 

Rezoning      

(2) P-0722-18 Mountain Heights Lawn Care LLC Is Requesting Rezoning For 
3912 Wooten Dr. from Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills B-2 
For A Lawn Care Business .  

 
Mr. Garrison explained the request. The business has been operating there for 20 years 
before it came to the City’s attention. The City has received no complaints about the 
business. He also listed a set of staff recommended conditions. 
 
Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Commission concerning this request, Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened 
the floor for a motion. 
 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 3 

 
MOTION       Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning for 3912 Wooten Dr.       
from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills B-2 with the following conditions: 
 
(1) That buffering be installed on either side of the property pursuant to the zoning code; 
(2) that gravel be removed from the front of the property and a minimum of 10' of grassy 
area be installed followed by tree installation along the edge of the front of the property 
to mitigate any visual view of buildings, equipment, vehicles on the property; 
(3) that the existing buildings be relocated further back on the property behind the visual 
screening of the newly installed trees; 
(4) that said buffering and landscaping be approved by the Design Review Board; 
(5) that this zoning shall revert back to the R-4 residential zoning should the Mountain 
Heights Landscaping business cease to exists or is sold to another owner; 
(6) that covenants be recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate reflecting said 
conditions and;  
(7) that the City Planner inspect and approve the property improvements as recommended 
herein and that a copy of said recorded covenants be submitted to the Office of the City 
Clerk and filed with the ordinance of rezoning prior to effective date of rezoning. 
 
Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes                           Mr. Farrell – yes                                        
Mr. Romeo – yes                                Mr. Maloof– yes                     
Mr. Weaver– yes                                Mr. Vercher– yes        
Ms. Barnes– yes                                  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
Conrad Garrison, City Planner 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2020

CASE: P-1120-37

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For Easter Resurvey of Erwin Circle

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 205 Erwin Cir.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Shannan Easter

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat will combine Lot 13 with adjacent acreage to 
create Lot 13A. Both the acreage and lot are under same ownership. New lot will 
meet the minimum requirements for R-2 zoning.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted





8/5/22, 9:03 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2

Project Information

Owner Information

Surveyor Information

Final Plat Application

FP-22-2
Submitted On: Jul 20, 2022

Applicant

  Bobby Adams
   2053651197

  bobbyadams03@gmail.com

Primary Location

3417 MOUNTAINSIDE RD
 VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Property Address

3417 Mountainside Rd

Parcel ID Number

--

Legal Description

Lots 14 & 15

Current Zoning Classification

R-4

Acreage

0

Application Submission Date

7/18/22

Reason for Request

Combine Lots

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the
property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by
way of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

By clicking this box, I hereby declare that the above information
is true and that am the current owner of this property and I will
represent this case.

true

Owner Name

Bobby Adams

Company Name

--

Mailing Address

3417 Morningside Rd

Owner Email

--

Phone Number

2053651197

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the
representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this
petition for rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am
submitting notarized documentation from the owner which
authorizes me to represent this case.

false

Representative for Owner

--

Company Name

--

Email

NA

Mailing Address of Representative

--

Phone No. of Representative

--

Name Company



8/5/22, 9:03 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2

Robert Reynolds Reynolds Surveying

Mailing Address

1572 Montgomery Hwy. Ste 108

Phone Number

2058237900

Registration Number

--

Email

na



8/5/22, 9:05 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3669/17783/printable 1/1



8/5/22, 9:05 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3669/17787/printable 1/1





6/3/22, 9:08 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 1/3





6/3/22, 9:08 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 2/3





6/3/22, 9:11 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12222/printable 1/1



6/3/22, 9:12 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12225/printable 1/1



6/3/22, 9:12 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12223/printable 1/1



6/2/22, 9:37 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12225/printable 1/1













8/5/22, 9:10 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Owner Information

Rezoning Application

RZ-22-3
Submitted On: Jul 6, 2022

Applicant

  John White
   205-240-0420

  john.parker.white@gmail.com

Primary Location

3524 RIDGEDALE DR
 VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Subject Property Address

3524 & 3516 Ridgedale Dr

Tax Parcel ID Number

--

Legal Description

Lots 27 and 33 Rocky Ridge Estates

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

07/06/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

JC E-2

To Requested Zoning Classification

VH R-1

For the Intended Purpose of:

annexation

Acreage of Subject Property

N/A

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

N/A

Front

--

Back

--

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-
residential development or is a residential development in
excess of 3 units, that I am required to submit a tree save plan
concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).

true

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the
property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by
way of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

John White & Patty Lucas



8/5/22, 9:10 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

3524 & 3516 Ridgedale Dr, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

Owner's Phone Number

205-240-0420

Email Address of Owner

john.parker.white@gmail.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the
representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this
petition for rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am
submitting notarized documentation from the owner which
authorizes me to represent this case.

true

Owner Representative/Responsible Party

John White

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--



8/5/22, 9:11 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3389/16267/printable 1/1









8/5/22, 9:13 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Owner Information

Rezoning Application

RZ-22-4
Submitted On: Jul 6, 2022

Applicant

  Jason Womack
   2565049373

  jason@coosaconsulting.com

Primary Location

2632 RILLWOOD RD
 VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Subject Property Address

2632 rillwood rd

Tax Parcel ID Number

28-00-28-4-001-019.000

Legal Description

Lot 15 Altadena Park 2nd Sector

Existing Parking Spaces

3

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

07/06/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

Jefferson County E-1

To Requested Zoning Classification

Vestavia Hills E-2

For the Intended Purpose of:

Annexation 

Acreage of Subject Property

1acre

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

1acre

Front

--

Back

--

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-
residential development or is a residential development in
excess of 3 units, that I am required to submit a tree save plan
concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).

true

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the
property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by
way of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

Jason Womack



8/5/22, 9:13 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

2632 Rillwood rd, Vestavia Hills 35243

Owner's Phone Number

2565049373

Email Address of Owner

Jason@coosaconsulting.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the
representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this
petition for rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am
submitting notarized documentation from the owner which
authorizes me to represent this case.

true

Owner Representative/Responsible Party

--

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--



8/5/22, 9:14 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3395/16289/printable 1/1







8/5/22, 9:15 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Owner Information

Rezoning Application

RZ-22-5
Submitted On: Jul 13, 2022

Applicant

  Daniel Cambron
   205-542-7674

  daniel.cambron@gmail.com

Primary Location

2644 YORKMONT DR
 VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35226

Subject Property Address

2644 Yorkmont Drive

Tax Parcel ID Number

29-35-4-001-17.000

Legal Description

Lot 16, Chimney Hills

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

07/07/2022

Type of Project

Annexation of a Single-Family Home

From Existing Zoning Classification

Jefferson County R-1

To Requested Zoning Classification

Vestavia Hills R-2

For the Intended Purpose of:

Annexation

Acreage of Subject Property

0.5

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

na

Front

--

Back

--

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-
residential development or is a residential development in
excess of 3 units, that I am required to submit a tree save plan
concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).

true

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the
property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by
way of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

Daniel Cambron



8/5/22, 9:15 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Company Name

na

Owner Address City State Zip

2644 Yorkmont Drive, Vestavia Hills AL  35226

Owner's Phone Number

205-542-7674

Email Address of Owner

daniel.cambron@gmail.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the
representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this
petition for rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am
submitting notarized documentation from the owner which
authorizes me to represent this case.

true

Owner Representative/Responsible Party

--

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--



8/5/22, 9:15 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3518/16996/printable 1/1







 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     AUGUST 11, 2022 
 

 CASE:  P-0822-19 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Increasing Patchwork Farms PUD Condo Limit From 30 
to 37  

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  Patchwork Farms 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER: Christopher, LLC Et Al 

 
 GENERAL DISCUSSION: The request is to amend the Patchwork Farms PUD 

regulations, lifting the cap on condo units from 30 to 37. The condo units would be 
part of a development that includes a hotel, retail, and parking garage. 

 
The proposed site plan and rationale are included. The proposed site plan does change 
traffic patterns in and around the PUD. Ingress/egress easements between lots in the 
PUD will be required. The rise in the condo unit cap is the only thing considered and 
requiring approval with this request. All other requirements of the Patchwork Farms 
PUD will be followed. 

 
 PATCHWORK FARMS PUD: The request is consistent with the PUD for planned 

mixed use.  
 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  Staff recommends the following 
conditions: A. Amendment not final until all ingress/egress easements are 
recorded and submitted to the City.  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Traffic study will be required before permitting.  
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



 2 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 



 
3.c.   Plan. A Master Development Plan of the PUD and any maps necessary to show the following information: 
(applicable to this property only) 

(1)   The direction of north, appropriate scale and topography (in no greater than ten (10) feet contour 
intervals), waterways, flood plains, wetlands, forest cover and known areas of subsurface mining or environmental 
hazards; 

 
We have provided a full site survey as prepared by Southern Point Surveying in July 2021.   
 
(2)   The location of the various land uses by PUD land use districts as listed in §6.9.5 hereof; 
 
Lot 5C: Mixed Use 

 Planned Business (Retail) 
 Planned Single-Family Residential (Condos) 

 
(3)   The location of any existing and proposed public or private streets and streets, greenbelts, buffers, 

natural or man-made open spaces, schools, parks and community service areas within and adjacent to the project 
area; and 

 
The project is located at the intersection of two public streets, Caldwell Mill Road and Healthy Way. We 
have provided a site survey for the Boundary and Topographic features performed by Southern Point 
Surveying in July 2021. The requested information is indicated in that survey. 
 
 (4)   The location of any proposed gates for control of access on public and private streets. 
 
There are no proposed gates for control of access to any public or private streets. 
 

4. Planning Criteria. 
 

4.a.   A legal description of the total site proposed for the PUD; 
 
Lots 5A and 5C, according to the Survey of the Patchwork Farms Resurvey of Lot 5 Final Plat, as recorded 
in Map Book 241, Page 37 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
4.b.   A general description of the surrounding area, including current zoning and/or land uses; 
 
Patchwork Farms provides a unique destination serving to attract a mixture of retail, dining, residential, 
and commercial uses that will increase the available revenue base the City utilizes to support community 
services and schools. The 82+/- acre property is ideally suited to accommodate this diversity of uses when 
comprehensively planned in accordance with the Planned Unit Development Zoning Classification 
established pursuant to the City Code.  
 
The base zoning districts for Patchwork Farms Parcels are reflected in the attached Exhibits and provide as 
follows:  
 
Land Use District    Gross Acreage (approximate)  
Planned Single Family (PR-1)    3.09 Acres 
Planned Business (PB)*    78.79 Acres 
Total       82.46 Acres  
 
The buildings and uses within Patchwork Farms shall generally comply with the Zoning Code of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the Patchwork Farms Planned Unit Development Zoning Application and 



Development Plan and the First Amendment thereto, the Patchwork Farms Commercial Declaration of 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and any amendments thereto, as applicable, except as specifically 
set forth herein.  
 
4.c.   A statement of planning objectives to be achieved by the PUD through the particular approach 
proposed by the applicant. The statement should include a description of the character of the proposed 
development and the rationale behind the assumptions and projections made by the applicant in relation 
to the over-all community growth; 
 
The Patchwork Farms Plan has been conceived in accordance with the following planning objectives:  
 

 To advance the vision for Patchwork Farms as contemplated by the Patchwork Farms Charrette 
by (i) creating a mixture of retail, commercial, institutional, residential, and recreational uses that 
will contribute to the vitality of the City of Vestavia Hills as a whole, (ii) providing opportunities 
for recreation and community activity, (iii) providing infrastructure to support contemplated 
development, and (iv) enhancing the shopping, dining, and entertainment choices in the City.  

 To reinforce the character and vision for Patchwork Farms as a pedestrian friendly, community-
oriented destination, while incorporating flexibility in design and operation that is critical to 
attract and maintain a strong core of retail, restaurant, and commercial tenants.  

 To cultivate a family-friendly environment through amenities such as green spaces, walking trails, 
sidewalks, and plazas that will encourage and invite leisurely strolls, dining, shopping, and 
community activities.  

 To design, construct, and operate Patchwork Farms in a manner that is appropriate for its 
surroundings and that attempts to minimize the impacts on adjacent neighborhoods by focusing 
on transitions between uses, setbacks, topography, vegetation, screening, and green space.  

 To reinforce the positive image that is enjoyed by City of Vestavia Hills, by emphasizing 
architectural quality, providing attractive and pedestrian oriented streetscapes, and by 
maintaining rich landscaping and green space.  

 To provide for efficient traffic circulation within Patchwork Farms by introducing street, 
infrastructure, and parking improvements focused on convenience, accessibility, and ease of 
movement.  

 To minimize disruptions to the community through the efficient sequencing and scheduling of 
construction activity intended to minimize the time necessary for project delivery.  

 To employ the efficient and economical arrangement of buildings, lots, uses, circulation, and 
supporting infrastructure than would otherwise be feasible under the traditional zoning 
classifications.  

 
4.d.   Of the development is to be in phases or stages, a general discussion of how the phases or staging is 
to proceed and an estimated date when the PUD will begin; 
 
Depending on a variety of factors, construction would begin in December 2022/January 2023 with an 18-
22 month construction window. Condos and retail spaces will be pre-sold and pre-leased. Construction 
will begin with the residences and parking deck, followed by the Hotel. The development should be 
completed by summer of 2024. 

 
4.e.   General delineation of the various land use districts within the PUD, indicating for each such district 
its general size in terms of estimated total number of acres, with the exact boundaries of each such area 
to be determined by plat approved by the Commission; 
 
Land Use District    Gross Acreage (approximate)  
Planned Single Family (PR-1)    3.09 Acres 



Planned Business (PB)*    78.79 Acres 
Total       82.46 Acres  
 
4.f.   A calculation of the residential density in dwelling units per gross acre including interior roadways, 
and including maximum density in units per acre, and densities for all other land use districts within the 
PUD; 

 
Residences at Alta 37 units on 2 acres – ~18.5 units per acre. 

 
4.g. Development criteria which shall include: 
(1) setbacks or other location methods, minimum finished floor areas, sign criteria, building heights, off-
street parking requirements for each proposed land use district, and/or any other development criteria 
which the applicant may propose,  
 
Lot frontage along Healthy Way has a 5’-0” utility easement that will be maintained. 20’-0” Sanitary Sewer 
Easement straddling lots 5A and 5C shall be maintained. Building Heights may not exceed ten (10) stories 
as following regulations for Planned Office (PO) – per email exchange with Rebecca Leavings and Jack 
Wakefield in January of 2020. Off-street parking demands to follow typical demands for each use (within 
the mixed-use facilities) to be accommodated by new Parking Deck structure and new on-street parking 
between lots. No minimum finished floor areas. Signage to be integrated with landscape design or 
building design. 

 
(2) a general discussion of loading areas, greenbelts and buffers;  
 
Loading areas to be minimal – only to service the Hotel back of house and a possible adaptation to a pair 
of parking spaces along Healthy Way for future commercial tenancy. 5’-0” landscape buffers along 
property lines to be maintained on either side and in the front of each lot. Medjet parking that extends 
into either lot’s rear will be maintained and utilized for the new development. 

 
4.h. Proposed plans for open space;  

 
No significant open space is proposed. 

 
4.i. Availability and accessibility of transportation, water supply and sewage disposal to the property;  
 
Existing roadways, water, and sewage from Healthy Way to be maintained and utilized by new 
development. 
 
4.j.   General statement regarding the ownership and maintenance of common areas and/or common 
open space; 
 
There are two common areas related to the development of the hotel and condominiums: (1) the 
common areas within that property (shared by the hotel, retail, and condominiums), and (2) the common 
areas of the Patchworks PUD. For (1), the owners of the hotel, condominiums, and retail space will 
contribute to the common area maintenance (“CAM”) on a prorata basis as part of the Master Declaration 
Agreement establishing the ownership entities. For (2), these same owners will be assessed their 
proportion of CAM by the Patchworks association according to the relative size of the new development 
and the existence of a structure, relative to the other entities within the Patchworks PUD. 
 
4.k.   Documentation of any protective and/or restrictive covenants, homeowner or business associations 
and architectural review committees, if any, and a discussion of their functions. 



 
In connection with the preparation of schematic design documents for any building(s) or structure(s), the 
project owner shall, in accordance with the Patchwork Farms Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions and 
City Code, submit preliminary plans (site plan, floor plans, elevations, lighting & landscaping, et. al) for 
review and approval by the Architectural Review Committee and Design Review Board (“Design 
Committee”). The respective entities shall review for compliance with the Design Standards and City 
Code, provide guidance as to required changes or modifications, if necessary for compliance, and 
ultimately provide notice of approval or rejection. Prior to commencing construction on any building, the 
project owner shall apply for a building permit in accordance with City Code. The zoning officer shall have 
the right to consult with the Design Committee to determine if the final plans comply with the Design 
Standards and approvals from the respective entities.  

 
4.l. A general statement concerning any planned street/subdivision sign designs, including street, traffic 
and informational signs or other standards;  

 
Street and traffic signage to follow typical design for Vestavia Hills. Informational signage to be integrated 
into landscape design.  A Master Signage Plan, created for the Patchwork Farms development, provides 
standards for street, way-finding, building, and monument signage. Project owners shall be required to 
submit proposed signage for review and approval by the Design Committee. Prior to erecting any sign or 
awning, each business within Patchwork Farms shall submit an application for a sign permit in accordance 
with City Code.  

 
4.m. Any planned interim uses of any portion of the property;  
 
A sales center installed on site to promote the condominiums and upcoming development. 

 
4.n. A traffic study, if required by the City Engineer;  
 
We have a civil engineer, Mark Gonzalez with Gonzalez Strength & Associates, to coordinate all roadway 
improvements and modifications. We have already presented a Site Plan to Christopher Brady and Lori 
Beth Kearley in May of 2021 outlining the scope of work. 

 
4.o. Landscaping criteria;  
 
Exterior areas to be developed complimentary to building design. Use of landscape walls, pedestrian 
courts, and multiple-use areas are encouraged. 
 
4.p.   Any proposed modification of existing subdivision regulations as applicable to the PUD. 
 
Developer seeks an additional two (2) condominium units approved to achieve feasibility for the project. 
 

 



VAN

T

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co co

H

Y D

H Y

D

H

YD

H Y

D

co

FD
C

co

R20

HE
AL

TH
Y 

W
AY

HE
AL

TH
Y 

W
AY

CALDWELL MILL ROAD

M
ED

JE
T

AS
PI

RE

CALDWELL MILL ROAD

CA
HA

BA
 

RE
TI

RE
M

EN
T 

VI
LL

AG
E

LI
FE

TI
M

E 
FI

TN
ES

S

OLD LOONEY MILL RD

A
B

C

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y 

LI
N

E

R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 / 
LO

T 
LI

N
E

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T

TO
TA

L 
N

EW
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 
PR

O
VI

D
ED

 IN
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T:

 
25

3 
SP

AC
ES

SI
TE

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
TO

 B
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

O
F 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S.

PU
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 P
LA

N
N

ED
 

O
FF

IC
E 

(P
O

) R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

N

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E

JO
B 

N
O

.

D
AT

E

NO
T F

OR
 CO

NS
TR

UC
TIO

N

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

6/23/2022 1:30:00 PM

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 -

EX
IS

TI
N

G

AL
TA

05
/1

3/
20

22

21
02

8

30
71

 &
 3

0
79

 H
ea

lth
y 

W
ay

,
Bi

rm
in

gh
am

, A
L 

35
24

3

N
B,

 M
C

M
B,

 C
P

M
-A

00
.0

01

#
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

1"
 =

 4
0'

-0
"

1
Ex

ist
in

g 
Si

te
 P

la
n



VAN

T

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co

co co

H

Y D

H Y

D

H

YD

H Y

D

co

FD
C

co

R20

CALDWELL MILL ROAD

EX
IS

TI
NG

 
DE

TE
NT

IO
N 

PO
ND

EX
IS

TI
NG

 
DE

TE
NT

IO
N 

PO
ND

LO
AD

IN
G 

DO
CK

"PATCHWORK PLACE"

A
B

C

HE
AL

TH
Y 

W
AY

M
ED

JE
T

AS
PI

RE

CALDWELL MILL ROAD

CA
HA

BA
 

RE
TI

RE
M

EN
T 

VI
LL

AG
E

LI
FE

TI
M

E 
FI

TN
ES

S

OLD LOONEY MILL RD

HE
AL

TH
Y 

W
AY

DISTANCE TO CLOSEST SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENCE AT 4595 OLD LOONEY MILL ROAD:

+390'

HO
TE

L C
AN

OP
Y 

BE
HI

ND
 

RI
GH

T 
OF

 W
AY

 (R
.O

.W
.)

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y 

LI
N

E

R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 / 
LO

T 
LI

N
E

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T

TO
TA

L 
N

EW
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 
PR

O
VI

D
ED

 IN
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T:

 
25

3 
SP

AC
ES

SI
TE

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
TO

 B
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

O
F 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S.

PU
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 P
LA

N
N

ED
 

O
FF

IC
E 

(P
O

) R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

N

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E

JO
B 

N
O

.

D
AT

E

NO
T F

OR
 CO

NS
TR

UC
TIO

N

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

6/23/2022 1:29:46 PM

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 -

PR
O

PO
SE

D

AL
TA

05
/1

3/
20

22

21
02

8

30
71

 &
 3

0
79

 H
ea

lth
y 

W
ay

,
Bi

rm
in

gh
am

, A
L 

35
24

3

N
B,

 M
C

M
B,

 C
P

M
-A

00
.0

02

#
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

1"
 =

 4
0'

-0
"

1
Si

te




